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Independent Auditors® Report
Ta the Members of Popular Vehicles and Services 1imited
(formerly knoven as Popuiar Vehicles and Services Private Lintited)

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statcments
Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
(formerly known as Popular Vehicles und Services Private Limited) (%the Company™. which
comprise the standalonc balance sheet as at 31 March 2019, and the standalone statement of profit and
loss (including other comprechensive income), standalonc statement of changes in cquity and
standalone statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial
statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companics Act. 2013
("Act”) in the manner so required and give a truc and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2019,
and profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended
on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
113(10) of the Act. Our responsibilitics under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that arc relevant o our audit
of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder. and
we have fulfilled owr other cthical responsibilitics in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We belicve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the direetor’s report. but does not include the financial statements and
our auditors” report thereon. The dircetor’s report is expected to be made available to us afier the date
of this auditor’s report.

Ouwr opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not CXPIess
any form of assurance conclusion thercon.
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Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
(formerly known as Popdar Vehicles and Services Private Limited)
Independent Auditors® Report (continued)

[n connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identificd above when it becomes available and, in doing so. consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit. or otherwise appears to be matcrially misstated. IT, based on the work we have
performed. we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statcments

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section
[34(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a
truc and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the asscts of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularitics; sclection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that arc reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for cnsuring
the accuracy and complcteness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the standalonc financial statements that give a truc and fair view and are frec from material
misstatement, whether duc 1o fraud or crror.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible
for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to ccase operations, or has no realistic alternative but 1o do so.

Board of Dircctors is also responsible for oversecing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements
as a whole arc free {rom material misstatement, whether duc to fraud or error. and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material missiatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arisc from fraud or error and are considered matceial if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the cconomic decisions of users
taken on the basis of thesc standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we cxercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and asscss the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial stalements,
whether due to fraud or crror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions. misrcprescitations, or the
override of internal control.

T
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Independent Auditors® Report (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilitics for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements (continucd)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 113(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to (inancial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls,

Obtain an understanding of intcrnal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)i) of the Act, we arc also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating cifectiveness of such
conirols.

livaluale the appropriateness of accounting policics used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosurcs made by management.

Conclude on the appropriatencss of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and. based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists refated to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continuc as a going
concern. IFwe conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosurcs in the standalone financial statements or. if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtaincd up Lo the date of our auditor’s report. JHowever, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease Lo continue as a 2oing concern.

Lvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
meluding the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
(ransactions and cvents in a manner that achicves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant deficiencies in
micrnal control that we identify during our audit.

Wealso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and 1o communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may rcasonably be thought to bear on our independence. and where applicable,
related safcguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements

As required by the Companics (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of section 1413 (11) of the Aet, we give in the “Annexurc A” a
statement on the matters specificd in paragraphs 3 and 1 of the Order, 1o the extent applicable.

(A} As required by Scetion [43(3) ol the Act. we report that;

a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and beliet were neeessary for the purposes ol our audit.

fend
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Popular Vehicles and Scrvices Limited
tformerly known as Popular Vehicles and Services Private Limited)
Independent Auditors® Report (continucd)

Report on Other Tegal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)

b)

¢)

d)

)

In our apinion, proper books of account as required by taw have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The standalone balance shect, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the standalonc
statement of cash lows dealt with by this Reporl are in agreement with the books of
account,

In our opinion, the aforesaid slandalone financial staicments comply with the Ind AS
specified under section 133 of the Act,

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2019
taken on record by the Board of Dircctors, none of the directors is disqualificd as on 3|
March 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respeet 1o the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference Lo financial
statements of the Company and the operating elfectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexurc B”.

(B) With respect to the other matters Lo be included in the Auditors™ Report in accordance with

Rule 1'1 of the Comparties (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
ol our information and according to the exptanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2019 on its
financial position in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 28 10 the standalone
financial statements;

The following are the instances of delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred.
10 the Investor Education and protection Fund by the Company

Duce date Date of payment Delay in days Amount
R involved (in Rs.)
30 January 2018 | 2 June 2018 124 22,100

1i. The disclosures in the standalone financial statements regarding holdings as well as

dealings in specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December
2016 have not been made in these financial statements since they do not pertain to the
financial ycar ended 31 March 2019,



B S R & Associates LLP
Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
(formerdy known us Popular Vehicles und Services Private Limited)
Independent Auditors’ Report (continucd)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)
(C) With respect lo the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section [97(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the company to its directors during the current year is in accordance
with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in
excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs
has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) which are required to be commented
upon by us.

Jor BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration No.: 116231 W/ W-100024

Baby Paw

Pariner

Membership No.: 218255

UDIN: [9218255AAAAAMA680

Kochi
26 July 2019
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Popular Vchicles and Services Limited
(formerly knoven as Popular Vehicles and Services Private Limited)
Anncxure A (o the Independent Auditors’ Report

Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditors” Report to the members of the Company on the
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019, we report that:

(i) (a} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed asscts,

{b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by
which fixed asscls are verified in a phased manner over a period of thice years. [n
accordance with this programme, certain fixed assets were verified during the year
and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, this
periodicity of physical verification is rcasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets.

(¢} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
cxamination of the records of the Company, the Litle deeds of immovable properties are
held in the name of the Company.,

(i) The inventory excluding goods in transit has been physically verified by the management
during the ycar. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is rcasonable. The
discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records
were nol material.

(i} (a) The Company has granted unsecured loans to three subsidiary companies covered in the
register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’). In our
optnion and according to the information and explanation given to us, Company does
not consider the reimbursement of costs and outstanding to fall under the purview of
loans. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the terms and conditions for such loans are
not prejudicial 1o the interest of the Company.

{(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, no amount is outstanding at the ycar end.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) (b} and (¢} of the Order is not applicable,

(iv) In our opinion and according 1o the inlormation and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of scction 185 and 186 of the Act, with
respect 1o the loans /guaranices given and investments made.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning the
dircctives issued by the Reserve Bank of India, provisions of Section 73 to 76 of the Act,
any other rclevant provisions of the Act and the retevant rules framed thereunder and
accordingly paragraph 3(v) of the said order is not applicable.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account relating to materials, labour, and other
ilems of cost maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules prescribed by the Central
Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 118 (1) of the Act and we
arc of the opinion that prima facic the preseribed amounts and records have been made
and maintained. However, we have not made a detailed examination of the records.
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Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
(formerly known as Popular Vehicles and Services Private Limited)

Annexure A (o the Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)

(vii)

(a)

(b)

According to the information and cxplanations given to us and on the basis of our
examtnation of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of
account in respect ot undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’
state insurance, income-tax, goods and services lax, cess and other material statutory
dues have been generally been regularly deposited during the year by the Company
with the appropriate authoritics,

According to the information and explanations given o us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of provident fund, employees™ state insurance, income-tax, goods
and services tax, cess and other material statutory dues were in arrcars as at
31 March 2019 fora period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income
tax or service tax or sales tax or duty of customs or value added tax or goods and
service tax which have not been deposited by the Company on account of disputes,

cxcepl for the following:

Name of | Nature of Disputed Amount | Period to Forum
the dues Amount paid which where
statute under the dispute is
protest amount pending
(in INR) relates
Kerala Sales tax. 22,740,853 19.059.81 2007-08 KVAT
Value interest and 5 to 2012- Appeliate
Added Tax penalty I3 Tribunal,
Act, 2003 Ernakulam
Kerala Sales tax. [64.489.376% | 13209250 | 2010-( | Commercial
Value interest and to 2015- Tax Officer,
Added Tax pcnalty 16 Chennai
Act, 2003
Kcrala Sales tax, 50,980 15,294 2013- Commissioner
Value intcrest and 2014 of Commercial
Added Tax penalty Taxcs,
Act, 2003 Trivandrum
Kerala Sales 1ax, 097,286,858 ILHI7A32 1 2011-2016 Deputy
Value intcrest and Commissioner
Added Tax penalty of Appcals,
Act. 2003 Ernalkulam
Kerala Sales tax, 781,724 448,471 2006-2007 Deputy
Value interest and to 2011-12 | Commissioner
Added Tax penalty of Appeals,
Act, 2003 Trivandrum
Finance Scrvice tax, §,656.805 301,231 2005-06t0 | Commissioner
Act, 1994 interest and 2014-15 Appeals,
penalty | Ernakulam
7
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Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
(formerly known as Popular Vehicles and Services Private Limited)
Annexare A to the Independent Auditors® Report (contined)

Name of the
statutle

Finance Act, 1994

Finance Act, 1994

Finance Act, 1994

Income Tax Act,
1961

Income Tax Act,
1961

Income Tax Act,
1961

Income Tax Act,
1961

Income Tax Act,
1961

Income Tax Act,
1961

Income Tax Act,
1961

Nature of
dues

Service tax,
interest and
penalty

Service lax,
interest and
penalty

Service lax,
interest and
penalty

Income tax
and interest

[ncome Lax
and interest

Income 1ax
and interest

Income lax
and interest

IFringe benefit
fax

[ncome tax

Income lax

Disputed
Amount

t17,816,236

6,438,172

465,580

3,745,118

9,469,518

5,706,912

2.4443,990

1,591,260

376,259

982,692

Amount
paid under
protest
(in INR)

3,149,042

559,966

Nil

4,745,520

3.528.179

5,681,010

35,460

(41,294

Period to
which
the
amount
relates
2006-07 to
2014-15

2006-07 to
2004-15

2006-07 to
2013-14

2004-05 &
2008-09

2002-03
6]
2012-12

2004-05
10
2014-15

2001-12

2008-09

2001-02

2003-04

Forum where
dispute is
pending

Customs Excise
and Service Tax
Appeltate
Tribunal,
Bangalore
Customs Excise
and Service Tax
Appellate
Tribunal,
Chennai

Commissioner
Appeals,
Chennai

Income Tax
Appeliate
Tribunal,
Ernakulam

Commissioner
of Income Tax
(Appeals),
Emakulam
Central
Processing
Centre,
Bangalore

Additional
Commissioner
of Income Tax,
Ernakutam
Commissioner
of Income Tax
(Appeals),
Ernakulam
The Kerala
High Court
The Supreme
Court of India

* Subsequent to the year end, the Company has reccived a lavorable order from the State tax Officer,
Chennai as on 31 May 2019,
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Anncxure A (o the Independent Auditors’ Report fcontinued)

(viii)

(ix)

(%)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiif)

(xiv)

{(xv)

{(xv1)

The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans and borrowings from any
banks. According to the information and explanations given to us. the Company did not
have any loans or borrowings from government or debenture holders during the year.

The Company did not raisc any moncy by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year, According to the information and
cxplanation given to us, the term loans taken by the company have been applied for the
purpose for which they were raised.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported
during the course of our audit.

According to the tnformation and explanations given to us and based on the examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has paid/provided managerial remuncration
in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197
rcad with Schedule V of the Act.

[n our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a nidhi company. Thus, paragraph 3{(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and cxplanations given to us and based
on our examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of
such fransactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
accounting standards.

[n our opinion and according Lo the information and explanations given to us and based
on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable,

According 1o the information and explanations given 1o us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions
with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly. paragra ph 3(xv) of the Order
is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registercd under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934,

Jor BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accotmntants

Firm's

Registration No.: 11623 1W/ W-100024

Baby Paul

Pariner

Membership No: 218255
UDIN: 19218255AAAAAMA680

Kochi

26 July 2019
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Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
(formerly known as Popular Vehicles and Services Private Limited)
Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-scetion 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph 1A(f) under ‘Report on Other I.egal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of cven date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of
Popular Vehictes and Services Limited (formerly known as Popular Vehicles and Services Private
Limited) (“thc Company™) as of 31 March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

[t our opinion, the Company has, in all matevial respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2019, based on the internal financial controls with reference (o standalone
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting 1ssued by the nstitute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note™),

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Dircctors arc responsible for establishing and
mairtaining internal financial controls based on the internal linancial controls with reference to
standalone f{inancial statements criteria cstablished by the Company considering the essential
components ol internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policics, the safeguarding of its assets. the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act. 2013 (hereinafter referred (o as “the
Act™).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under scetion 143¢10) of the Act, 10 the
extent applicable (o an audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit (o obtain rcasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference 1o standalone financial statements were esiablished and maintained
and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respeets.
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Popular Vehicles and Scrvices Limited
(formerly known as Popular Vehicles and Services Private Limited)
Annexure B to the Independent Auditors® Report (continued)

Our audit involves performing procedures to oblain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements and (heir operating etlectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements included
obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate (o provide a basis
for our audit epinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference 1o standalone
financial statements.

Mecaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Standalone Financial Statements

A company's intecnal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements is a process
designed to provide rcasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements include those policics and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary
to permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and dircctors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, vuse, or
disposition ol the company's asscts that could have a material effect on the standalone financial
statements.

[nherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Standalone Finaneial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference 10 standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to crror or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also. projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference 1o standalone financial statements to future
periods are subjeet to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements may become tnadequate because of changes in conditions, o that the degree of compliance
with the policics or procedures may deteriorate.

Jor BS R & Associates 1.1.P
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration No.: 116231W/ W-100024

Baby Paul

Partner

Membership No.: 218255

UDIN: 19218255AAAAAMA680

Kochi
26 July 2019



Popular Vehicles and Services Limited ffornerly known us Popular Vehicles and Services Private Limited)
Balance sheet as at 31 March 2019
(All amounts in [INE. millions)

Note As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 1,274.87 1,217.93
Canpital work-in-progress 4 276.23 L18.76
Intangible assets 5 48.45 51.58
Financial assets

[nvestments 6 498.00 125.22

Loans 12 235.04 215.18
Income tax assets (net) 27 38.15 64.44
Other non-current assets 7 70.90 98.91
Total non-current assets 1.461.64 1,892.42
Current assets
Inventicries 8 1,778.35 790.57
Financial assets

Trade receivables 9 1,211,30 933.57

Cash and cash equivalents 10 114.70 209 .47

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 11 19.96 54.74

Loans 12 - 310.00
Other current assets 7 25196 68.33
Total curvent asseils 337627 2,366.68
Assets held for sale 37 3246 -
Total assets 5,870.37 4,259.10
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 13 125,44 3333
Other equity 1,697.55 1,664.46
Total equity 1,822.99 1,697.79
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 14 224.56 161.44
Provisions 16 £9.73 66.67
Deferred 1ax liabilities {net) 27 26.16 45.23
Otiter non-current liabilities 17 89.11 80.26
Tetal non-current liabilities 429,56 153,60
Current JiabMities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 14 242817 1,269.75

Trade payables 18

- Total outstanding dues of ticro and small enterprises 0.44 s
- Tolal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 385.61 134,15

Other financial liabilities 15 443.20 433.46
Provisions 16 2588 22.52
Other current Liabilities 17 324.52 347 83
Total carrent liabilities 3.617.82 2,207,711
Total equity and lisbilities 5,870.37 4,259.10
Significant accounting policies 3
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statemeats.
As per our report of even dale attached
jor BS R & Associates LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Direclors of
Chartered Accountaniy Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
Firm rgaistration number: 11623 1W/ W-100024 {formerly known as Popular Vehicles and Services Private Lirnited)

CIN: USOI02ZKLI983PLCO03741

St P

Baby Paul John K Paul Francis K Paul
Purtner Manuging Director Whale Time Director
Membership No.: 218255 DIN: 00016513

UDIN: 19218255AAAAAMA680

Kochi
26 July 2019

Varun TV
Company Secrefary

Chigf Execurive Officer

Kochi
26 July 2019



Popular Vehicles and Services Limited (formerly inown as Popular Vehicles and Services Private Limited)
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts in INR millions)

Note Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
[neome
Revetwe from operations 1% 22,525.15 22,608.69
Other income 20 128.80 60.95
Total income 22,653.95 22,669.64
Expenses
Purchases of stock-in-trade 2 20,260.9¢ 19,784.33
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 22 (987.78) (109.72)
Employee benefits expense 23 1,584.73 1,347.26
Finance costs 24 210.19 133.31
Depreciation and amortisation expense 15 158.45 156.72
Other expenses 26 1,237 88 1,077.80
Total expenses 22.464.37 22,389.70
Profit before tax 189.58 279.94
Current tax 27 82.17 98.64
Incometax for expense - earlier years 27 1.88 -
Defarred tax 27 (17.23) 5.18
Profit for the year 122.76 176.12
Other comprehensive income
ftems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liabiliny/ {asset) 527 6,54
incorae tax relating to item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (1.84) {2.26}
Total comprehensive income for the year 119.33 171.84
Earnings per share (equity share of face value of INR 10 each) 29
Basic and diluted {in INR) 10.00 14.74
Signiflicant accounting policies 3

The accompanying nctes form an integral pan of the statement of standalone financial statements,
As per our report of even date attached
for BS R & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
Iirm gegistration number: 11623 1W/ W-100024

Ly

Baby Paul John K Paul
Partner Managing Direcior
Membership No.: 218255 DIN: 00016513
UDIN: 19218255AAAMAM4GE0

Kochi
26 July 2019

Chief Executive Officer

Kochi
26 July 201%

Jfor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Popular Vehicles and Services Limited

(formerly known as Popular Vehicles and Services Private Limnited)
CIN: US0102KL1983PLCOST

|

"

Francis K Paul
Whole Time Divector
DIN: 00018825
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Company Secrelary
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Popular Vehicles and Services Limited (formerly known as Popular Vehicles and Services Private Limited}

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2019
{All amounts in INR millions)

Cash Mlows from operating activities

Profit before tax

Adfustmentis:

Finance costs

Depteciation and amortisation expense

Allowance for expected credit loss

Liabilities no longer required written back

Interest income under the effective interest method
{Gain)loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)
Financial assets at FVTPL-net change in fair value
Operating cash flow beflore working capital changes
Adjustments for changes in working capital

Increase in inventories

Increase in trade veceivables

Increase in loans and other financial assets and other assets
{Decrease) increase in liabilities

Cash generated frony (used in) operations

Taxes paid, net of refund received

Net cash generated (used in)/ from operating activities (A)

Cash flows from investing activitics

Acquisition of investments

Intercorporate loan repaid by! (given to) wholly owned subsidiary
Interest received

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Acquisition of intangible assets

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities (B)

Cash Mows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of equity share capital

Interest paid

Long-term borrowings repaid

Long-term borrowings availed

Short- tertn borrowings availed/ (repaid)

Net cash generated from/ (used in) financing activities (C)

Net increasef(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A +B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the yeae
{Refer ta note 10 - Cash and cash equivalenis)

Year ended
31 March 2019

Year ended
31 March 2018

189.58 279.94
210.19 133.31
158,45 156.72

5.10 12.60
(33.03) (28.96)
(79.90) (14.73)

4,60 {6.14)

©.21 (0.02)
458.78 531.72
(987.78) (109.72)
(286.83) (62.91)
(159,75) (51.53)
32580 (225.31)
(649.78) 83.25
(71.76) (110.63)
(727.54) (27.38)
(72.57) .
310.00 (96.00)
79.50 9,59
(409.27) (316.38)
.71 (4.55)
24,34 26.38
(370.33) (374.66)
587 ;
(208.96) (134.98)
(63.75) (93.87)
198.40 S

1,071.50 746.60

1,003.06 517.75
(94.81) 115.711
209.46 93.75
114.65 209.46

{Refer note 14 B for changes in liabilities and financial assets arising from financing activities)

*Cash and cash equivalents includes bank overdrafis that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company's cash management strategy.
The accompanying notes form an integral pact of the standalone financial statements.

As per our teport of even date attached

for BS R & Associates LLP

Chartered Accounianis

ICALFirm registration number: 116231W/ W-100024

Baby Paul

Partner

Membership No.: 2182355

UDIN: 19218255AAAAAM4680

Kochi
26 July 2019

Jor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
{formerly known as Popular Vehicles and Services Private Limited)
CIN:US0102KL1983PLCO0374)

)

~

Managing Director
DIN: 0016513

A\

John Verghes
Clulff Financial Offtver

Philip Chacko M
Chigf Exceutive Officer

Koghi
26 July 2019
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ancis K Paul

Whale Time Direcior
DIN: DOD 18825
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Company Secretary



Popular Vehicles and Services Limited (formerly kmown as Popular Vehicles and Services Private Limited)
Notes to standalone the financial statements (continued)

Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies

L.

Company overview

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited (‘the Company’/’Popular’) was incorporated in 1983 as a
Public Limited Company and got converted into Private limited as on 24 March 2015. The Company
is engaged in the business of sale and service of automobiles, sale of spare parts and accessories,
finance and insurance commission. The Company is headquartered in Kochi, India and has operations
in Kerala and Tami! Nadu. Popular Vehicles was amongst the first batch of dealers appointed by
Maruti Suzuki in the country. The Company got converted to a public limited company on 10 July
2018 consequent to which the name of the Company is changed to Popular Vehicles and Services
Limited.

The Company has six subsidiaries; Popular Mega Motors (India) Private Limited, Vision Motors
Private Limited, Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited, Kuttukaran Cars Private Limited (formerly
known as Prabal Motors Private Limited), Kuttukaran Pre Owned Cars Private Limited and Popular
Auto Works Private Limited which are engaged in the business of sale and services of automobiles,
sale of spare parts and accessories, finance and insurance commission.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

These standalone financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 20135, notified under Section 133
of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The standalone financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors
on 26 July 2019.

Details of the Company’s accounting policies are included in Note 3.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s
functional currency. All amounts are presented in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise
stated.

Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement basis

Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined

Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability benefit obligations

Certain financial assets (including|

investment) and liabilities Fair value

Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongeing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized prospectively.

Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most mgmf cant
effects on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is mcluded in I’}l@ :




Popular Vehicles and Services Limited (formerly known as Popular Vehicles and Services Private Limited)
Notes to standalone the financial statements (continued)

2. Basis of Preparation (continued)

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

[nformation about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting
in a material adjustment for the year ended 31 March 2019 is included in the following notes:

Note 32 — measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

Notes 28 — recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about
the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources;

Note 33 — financial instruments.

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values,

for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Group has an established control

framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hicrarchy based on the inputs used in the

valuation techniques as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobsetvable
inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far

as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels

of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same

level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement,

F. Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Standards issued but not effective on Balance sheet date:
Ind AS 116, Leases

The Company is required to adopt Ind AS 116, Leases from ! April 2019. Ind AS 116 introduces a
single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognises a right-of-use asset
representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make
lease payments. There are recognition exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low-value items.
Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard - i.e. lessors continue to classify leases as
finance or operating leases. It replaces existing leases guidance, Ind AS 17, Leases.

Lessees are required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g., a
change in the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to determine those payments). The lessee will generally recognise the amount of the re-
measutement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from today's accounting under
Ind AS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in Ind
AS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases: operating and finance leases.

The Company plans to apply Ind AS 116 initially on 1 April 2019, using the modified retrospective
approach. Therefore, the cumulative effect of adopting Ind AS 116 will be recognised as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained earnings at 1 April 2019, with no restatement of comparative
information.

The Company plans to apply the practical expedient to grandfather the definition of a lease on
transition. This means that it will apply Ind AS 116 to all contracts entered into before 1 April 2019
and identified as leases in accordance with Ind AS 17.

Based on the information currently available, the Company estimate
Ind AS 116 is not expected to be material. Ay



Popular Vehicles and Services Limited (formerly known as Popular Vehicles and Services Private Limited)
Notes to standalone the financial statements (continued)

20

3.1

Basis of Preparation (continued)

Ind AS 116, Leases (continued)

ii, Other Amendments
The MCA has notified below amendments which are effective 1 April 2019:

- Appendix C to Ind AS 12, [ncome taxes

- Amendments to Ind AS 103, Business Combinations

- Amendments to Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments

- Amendments to Ind AS 111, Joint Arrangements

- Amendments to Ind AS 19, Employee Benefits

- Amendments to [nd AS 23, Borrowing Costs

- Amendments to Ind AS 28, Investments to Associates and Joint Ventures

Based on Preliminary work, the Company does not expect these amendments to have any
significant impact on its Financial statements.

Significant accounting policies
Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized borrowing
costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties
and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly
attributable cost of bringing the ttem to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials
and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its
intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which
it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in profit or loss.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets, outstanding at each balance sheet date are
shown under long-term loans and advances. The cost of fixed assets not ready for its intended use at
each balance sheet date are disclosed as capital work-in-progress.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of those fixed
assets that necessarily take a substantial period to get ready for their intended use, are capitalized.
Other botrowing costs are accounted as an expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.
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Popular Vehicles and Services Limited (formerly known as Popular Vehicles and Services Private Limited)
Notes to standalone the financial statements (continued)

3.
3.1

C.

3.2

3.3

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated
residual values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method, and is generally
recognised in the profit or loss. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lease term or
useful lives of assets, whichever is lower. Freehold land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Class of assets Useful life
Building owned 60
Motor cars 8
Motor cycles and trucks 10
Office Equipment 5
Plant and machinery 15
Tools and Equipment 5
Electrical fittings 10
Furniture and fittings 10
Computer equipment 3

* The useful life of items of property, plant and equipment is in line with the Schedule 1I of the
Companies Act 2013.

Intangible assets

Intangibles assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Intangible assets
are amortized over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis,
commencing from the date the asset is available to the Company for its use and is included in
amortization in profit or loss.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Class of assets Years
Software 3
Brand 15

Amortization method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year
and adjusted if appropriate.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in
the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified
as short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and ex-gratia.
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short-
term cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a
result of past service provided by the employee and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliabl




Popular Vehicles and Services Limited (formerly known as Popular Vehicles and Services Private Limited)
Notes to standalone the financial statements (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)
Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays
fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Government administered
provident fund scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as
an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which the related services are
rendered by employees.

Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future
payments is available.

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.
The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods and discounting that
amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets, if any.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using
the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company,
the recognised asset is limitedto the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any
future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan (‘the asset ceiling’).

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses,
the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding
interest), are recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI). The Company determines the net
interest expense on the net defined benefit liability for the period by applying the discount rate used
to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined
benefit liability, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period
as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to
defined benefit plans are recognized in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit
that relates to past service {*past service cost’ or ‘past service gain”) or the gain or loss on curtailment
is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement
of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Other long term employee benefits

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize
it in future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the
compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service and are also not expected to be utilized wholly within twelve
months after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a long-term employee benefit. The
Company records an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee
renders the services that increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of
independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.
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Popular Vehicles and Services Limited (formerly known as Popular Vehicles and Services Private Limited)
Notes to standalone the financial statemeats (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.4 Investments

Non-current investments are carried at cost less any other than temporary diminution in value,
determined separately for each investment.

Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value. The comparison of cost and fair value
is done separately in respect of each category of investments.

The cost of investment includes acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties.

The acquisition cost of investments acquired, or partly acquired by the issue of shares or other
securities, is the fair value of the securities issued.

Profit or loss on sale of investments, if any, is determined separately for each investment.

3.5 Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognized
as finance cost. Expected future operating losses are not provided for.

A contract is considered to be onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the
Company from the contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the
contract. The provision for an onerous contract is measured at the present value of the lower of the
expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract.
Before such a provision is made, the Company recognizes any impairment loss on the assets associated
with that contract.

3.6 Revenue
i) Sale of products

Revenue on sale of vehicles, spare parts and accessories is recognised when the risk and rewards are
transferred to the customer and is accounted net of goods and service tax and trade discounts, if any.
Revenues are recognised when collectability of the resulting receivable is reasonably assured.

The Company generates revenue from sale of vehicles, services, spare parts and accessories and other
operating avenues. Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers establishes a comprehensive
framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognised. It replaced IAS 18
Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts. Under Ind AS 115, revenue is recognised when a customer
obtains control of the goods or services. The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 using the cumulative
cffect method, with the effect of initially applying this standard recognised at the date of initial
application (i.e. 1 April 2018) being included in retained earnings. Accordingly, the information
presented for the year ended 31 March 2018 has not been restated — i.e. it is presented, as previously
reported, under Ind AS 18, Revenue.

ii) Rendering of services

Revenues from services including income from driving school are recognised when services are
rendered and related costs are incurred.

iii) Commission, discount and incentive income

Commission income is recognised when services are rendered and in accordance with the commission

agreements.

Discounts and incentive income is recognised when the services are rendered and as per the relevant .=
scheme/ arrangement provided by the manufacturer. In respect of othcy 1{,@6&)@@ come, the Com pany, --'\EE:‘ N‘Q@;\.\
follows the practice of recognising income on an accrual basis. u; /KuTTUK A J\ \
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Popular Vehicles and Services Limited (formerly known as Popular Vehicles and Services Private Limited)
Notes to standalone the financial statements (continued)

3.  Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.7 Inventories
Vehicles — New and used Vehicles

Inventories of vehicles are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost represents actual cost
of purchase in case of cars (specific identification).

Spares, lubricants and accessories:

Inventory of spares, lubricants and accessories are valued lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is ascertained based on First-in-First-out (FIFO) in case of spares, lubricants and accessories adjusted
for indirect taxes.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

3.8 Financial instruments

i) Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognized when they are originated. All
other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair
value through profit and loss {FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition
or issue.

ii} Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at either at amortized cost, FVTPL or
fair value in other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period
the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVTPL.:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OC1 (designated as
FVOCI - equity investment). This election is made on an investment by investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. This includes ali derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortized cost or at FYOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.




Popular Vehicles and Services Limited (formerly known as Popular Vehicles and Services Private Limited)
Notes to standalone the financial statements (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is
held at investment level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is
provided to management. The information considered includes:

the stated policies and objectives for each of such investments and the operation of those policies
in practice.

the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed;

the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales
and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are
not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the
assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the
credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and
for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit
margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash
flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features,
prepayment and extension features; and

terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features).

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL [These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
including any interest or dividend income, ate recognized in profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortisedThese assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective]
cost interest method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized
in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in profit or
loss.

Equity  investments  afThese assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are]

FVOCI recognized as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents

a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses|

are recognized in OCI and are not 1‘ccla§5jﬁcd%roﬁl or loss.
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Popular Vehicles and Services Limited (formerly known as Popular Vehicles and Services Private Limited)
Notes to standalone the financial statements {(continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and
losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de recognition
is also recognized in profit or loss.

iii) De recognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction
in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or
in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet,
but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred
assets are not derecognized.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged
or cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows
under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognized at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognized in
profit or loss.

iv) Off setting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and
itintends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

3.9 Impairment

i) Impairment of financial instruments
The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured
at amortized cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost are
credit impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

[n all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the

maximum contractual period over which the Company is ex;pn to credit risk. D
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Popular Vehicles and Services Limited (formerly known as Popular Vehicles and Services Private Limited)
Notes to standalone the financial statements (continued)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
3.9. Impairment (continued)

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the
Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows
to repay the amounts subject to the write off.

ii} Impairment of non- financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at
each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication
exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together
into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.

In respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognized in prior periods, the Company
reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer
exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

3.10 Leases

i. Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

At inception of an arrangement, it is determined whether the arrangement is or contains a lease. At
inception or on reassessment of the arrangement that contains a lease, the payments and other
consideration required by such an arrangement are separated into those for the lease and those for
other elements on the basis of their relative fair values.

ii. Assets held under leases

Lease of property, plant and equipment that transfer to the company substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance lease. The leased assets are measured initially at an
amount equal to the lower of their fair value and the present value of minimum lease payments.

Assets held under leases that do not transfer to the Comwslanlially all the risks and rewards

of ownership (i.e. operating leases) are not recognized jr&ba:&zd% s¢ Sheet.
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Popular Vehicles and Services Limited (formerly known as Popular Vehicles and Services Private Limited)
Notes to standalone the financial statements (continued)

3.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.10 Leases {continued)

iii. Lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are generally recognized in profit or loss on a straight- line
basis over the term of the lease unless such payments are structured to increase in line with expected
general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. Lease incentives
received are recognized as an integral part of the total lease expense over the term of the lease.

3.11 Recognition of interest income or interest expense

3.12

ii.

Interest income or expense is recognized using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross catrying amount of the
financial asset or the amortized cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortized cost of the liability.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent
that it relates to an item recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. Minimum
Alternative Tax ('MAT") under the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 is recognized as current tax
in the profit or loss. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to
be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured
using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set
off the recognized amounts, and it is intended to realize the asset and settle the liability on a net
basis or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax is also recognized in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that
future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the
Company recognizes a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficieat taxable temporary
differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available
against which such deferred tax asset can be realized. Deferred tax assets —unrecognized or recognized,
are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognized/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer
probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realized or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow

from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrymg )

amount of its assets and liabilities.




Popuilar Vehicles and Services Limited (formerly known as Popular Vehicles and Services Private Limited)
Notes to standalone the financial statements (continued)

3.  Significant accounting policies (continued)
3.12 Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

3.13 Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign
currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest ¢osts) incurred in
connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or
construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense
in the period in which they are incurred.

3.14 Earnings pershare

The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax for the year attributable
to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

The number of shares used in computing diluted earnings per share comprises the weighted average
number of shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted average
number of equity shares that could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential
equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period
unless issued at a later date. In computing dilutive earning per share, only potential equity shares that
are dilutive i.e. which reduces earnings per share or increases loss per share are included.

3.15 Cash-flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects oftransactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or
payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated.

3.16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

J.17 Non-current assets classified as held for sale

Assets are classified as held for disposal and stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell. To classify any Asset as “Asset held for sale” the asset must be available for immediate
sale and its sale must be highly probable. Such assets or group of assets are presented separately in the
Balance Sheet, in the line “Assets held for sale”. Once classified as held for sale, intangible assets and
Property Plant Equipment are no longer amortised or depreciated.
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Popular Vehicles and Services Limited (formerly kmown as Popuiar Vehicles and Services Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements {continued)

{All amounts in INR millions)

5 Intangibles assets

Particulars Computer Brand Total
software
Gross carrying amount
Balance at | April 2017 9.84 49.47 59.3]
Additions 4.55 - 4.55
Balance at 31 March 2018 14.39 49.47 63.86
Balance at | April 2018 14.39 49.47 63.86
Additions 2.73 - 2.73
Balance at 31 March 2019 1712 49,47 66.59
Accumulated amortisation
Balance at | April 2017 2.56 335 5.51
Amortisation for the year 2.81 3.16 5.97
Balance at 31 March 2018 537 6.51 11.88
Balance at | April 2018 5.37 6.51 11.88
Amortisation for the year 3.10 3.16 6.26
Balance at 31 March 2019 8.47 9.67 18.14
Net carrying amount
At 31 Macch 2019 8.65 39.80 48.45
At 31 March 2018 9.02 42.96 51.98
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Popular Vehicles and Services Limited {formerly known as Popular Vehicles and Services Private Limited )
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in INR millions}

]

Investments

Non-current investments, unquoted

Investments in equity instriuments of subsidiaries (ar cost less provision for other than temporary
impairment), fully paid-up

Investment in subsidiaries

Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited

38,534 (31 March 2018: 23,830 ) equity shares of face value of INR 100 each

Popular Mega Motors {India} Private Limited

6,234,281 (31 March 2018: 4,999,643 } equity shares of face value of [NR 10 each

Popular Autoworks Private Limited

25,111,780 (31 March 2018: 3,295,600 ) equity shares of face valug of INR 10 each
Kuttukaran Cars Private Limited {formerly known as Prabal Motors Private Limited)
2,000,000 (31 March 2018: 2,000,000 } equity shares of face value of INR 10 each

Less: Provision for impaicment

Kuttukaran Cars Private Limited (formerly known as Prabal Motors Private Limited)
Investments in preference shaves at FVTPL

Prabal Motors Private Limited (formerly known as Popular Kuttukaran Cars Private Limited)
20,000 (31 March 2018 : 20,000 ) preference shares of face value of [NR 10 cach
[nvestment in others, FYTPL

Ouoted

Muthoot Finance Limited
469 (31 March 2018: 469 ) equity shares of face value of INR 10 each
Investment in mutual fands

Unquoted

Aditya Birla Sunlife Equity Fund 864.45 (31 March 2018: Nil)
HDFC Sroall Cap Fund 16,501.22 (31 March 2018: Nil)
Kotak Emerging Equity Scheme Fund 16,439.85 (31 March 2018: Nil)

Total investments

Apgrepate value of non-current investments-unquoted
Aggregate book/ market value of non-current investments-quoted
Agpregate provision for impairment in valug of investment

Other assets
Non-current

Unsecured, considered good

Capital advances
Prepayments

Balance with statutory / govemment authorities *

Current

Unsecured, considered good

Prepayments
Advance to staff

Balance with statutory / govermment authorities
Payment to vendors for supply of goods and services

* Represents amounts paid under protest against various tax cases and proceedings .

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 Macch 2018

43.70 9,78
199.57 85,98
247.23 29.07

15.50 15,50
(15.50) (15.50)

0.20 0.20
029 0.19
0.63 -
074 :
0.64 -
498.00 125.22
497.71 125.03

0.29 0.19
{15.50) (15.50)

6.80 25.85
28.18 26.52
35.92 46,54
70.90 98.91

17.87 15.89

0.17 0.71
191.08 -
42.84 51.73

251.96 68.33
322.86 167.24
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Popular Vehicles and Services Limited (formerly known as Popular Vehicles and Services Private Limited )
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
{All amounts in INR millions)
As at As at
31 March 2019 M March 2018

8  Inventories
(Valued at lower of cost and realisable value)

New vehicles 1,251,22 396.98
Used vehicles 300.93 201.36
Spares and lubricants 145.30 12521
Accessories 80.90 67.02

1,778.35 T90.57

Note: Closing stock includes value of goods in transit of new vehicles for INR 298,50 million (31 March 2018: TNR 84,02 million) and accessories
for INR 34.28 million (31 March 2018: INR 26.63 million).

9 Trade receivables

Current

Unsecured

considered good 1L211.30 933,57

considered doubtful 21.86¢ 26.43
1,233.10 960.00

Allowances for expected credit loss (refer note 33 B(ii)) (21.80) (26.43)

Met trade receivables 1,211.30 931,57

Of the above, trade receivables from related parties are as below:

Total trade receivables from related parties B.37 6.37

Net trade receivables 8.37 6.37

For details of trade receivables pledged, refer note 14.
For details of trade receivables from related parties, refer note 36,
The Company's exposure to credit and currency risks and loss allowances related to trade receivables are disclosed in note 33,

10 Cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks

Balanices with banks in current accounts 70.51 186.90
Cash on hand 21.49 9.70
Cheques on hand 22,70 12,87
Cash and cash equivalents in balance sheet 114,70 209,47
Book overdrafts used for cash management purposes 0.05 0.01
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows 114.65 209.46

11 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

In deposits accounts {with original matunty more than 3 months) 19.02 10,00
Unpaid dividend account - 0.02
Balance in banks for margin money 0.94 4472
19.96 54.74

12 Loans

Non-current
Unsecured, considered good

Rent and other deposits 235.04 21518
235.04 215.18
Current
Unsecured, considered good
Dues from related parties (refer note 36) - 310,00
- 310.00

235.04 525.18




Popular Vehicles and Services Limited (formerfy inown as Popular Yehicles and Services Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements {continued)
{All amounts and number of shares in [NR millions)

As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018

13 Share capital Number of shares  Amount Number of shares  Amount
Authorised
Equity shares of INR 10 each 15.00 150.00 5.00 50.00

15.00 150.00 5.00 50,00

Issued, subscribed and paid-up
Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid-up
At the beginning of the year 333 33.33 in 33.33
Add: Bonus issue of shares 8.62 86.24 - -
Add: Right issue of shares 0.59 5.87 - -
At the end of the year 12.54 125.44 333 3333

The Company has a single class of equity shares. All the equity shares rank equally with regard 10 dividends and share in the Company's
residual assets. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a
poll {not on show of hands) are in proportion to share of paid-up equity capital of the Company. Votimg rights cannot be exercised in respect of
shares on which any call or other sums presently payable have not been paid. Failure to pay any amount called up on the shares may lead to the
forfeiture of shares. On winding up of the Company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the
Company, remaining after the distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the number of equity shares held.

The Company is fargely held by individuals and accordingly does not have a holding/ ultimate holding company.

(a) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the Company
As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 Maech 2018
Equity shares of INR 10 each fiilly paid up held by Number of shares % Number of shares %
holding holding
a} BanyanTree Growth Capital [[, LLC 4.27 .01% 1.33 40.00%
b} Francis K Paul 2.75 21.93% 0.88 26.26%
¢) John K Paul 175 21.93% 0.88 26.26%
d} Naveen Philip 2.75 21.93% 0.24 T7.07%
(b) Details of bonus shares issued during the five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date.
During the year, 8.62 million equity shares of Rs. 10 ach, fully paid up, has been allotied as bonus shares by capitalisation of general reserve.
(c) Details of buyback and shares issued for consideration other than for cash in the five years immediately preceding the balance sheet

date,
The Company has not bought back any class of equity shares nor has there been any issue for consideration other than for cash during the
period of five years immediate preceding the balance sheet date.
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Popular ¥ehicles and Services Limited (fornterly known as Popular Vehicles and Services Private Limited)
Neotes to the fi ial stat ts {(continued)
{All amounts in TNE. milhons)

14 Borrowings

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

Non-current
Secured
Term loans from banks 192.65 99.15
Term loans from financial institulions 9.35 43.58
Vehicle loans from financial institutions 22.56 18.71
224.56 161.44
Current
Secured
{ash credit and overdraft facilities from banks 89.85 58.92
Short term loan fom banks 2,035.81 102811
Short term loan from financial institution 77.48 1.08
Unsecured
Short term loans from banks 20711 100.65
Short term loans from financial institutions 27.92 10.06
Loans from directors - 70.93
2.438.17 1,269.75
Add: Amount included under other financials labililies (refer note 15) 9294 118.33
2,531.11 1,388.08
Tatal borrowings 2,755.67 1,549.52
Information about the Company’s exposure o interest rate and liquidity dsks are included in note 33,
Details of securities, terms and conditions of borrowings from banks and financial institutions
Lenders name Security terms Nature of Tenure As al As at
borrowings 31 Mareh 2019 M March 2018
State Bank of India Secured by equilable mortgage over|Term joan from banks {96 months 56.54 70.64
immovable properties of the Company|Secured
and personal guarantees by John K Paul
and Francis K Paul, directors of the
Company.
Kotak Mahindra Peime Limited Secured by equilable mortgage of| Term loan from 60 months 43.54 .16
immovable properties belonging  tofinancial institutions -
ditectors of the company and personal|Secured
guarantees by John K Paul and Francis
K Paul, directors of the Comnpany.
Yes Bank Secured by personal guarantees of John|Short term loan from |60 days 107.53 2.20
K Paul and Francis K Paul, dirsctors ol|banks - Unsecured
the Company and lien on the wvehicle
booked.
Axis Bank Limited Secured by personal guarantees John K|Short term loan from |60 days 591,75 570.63
Paul and Francis K Paul, directors of the|banks - Secured
Company.
[ndusind Bank Limited Secured by personal guarantees of John|Short term loan from |60 Days 99.59 98.36
K Paul and Francis K Paul, directors ol|banks - Unsecured
the Company.
[CICI Bank Limited Secured by exclusive charge on the|Short term (oan from |60 Days 622,59 415.1
slock  and  receivables,  equitable|banks - Secured
mortgage on residential property and
personal guarantess of John K Paul and
Francis K Paul, directors of the
Company.
Kotak Mahindra Pritne Limited Secured by hypothecation of vehicles|Short term loan from |60 days 77.47 1.09
purchased using the fund and personal|financial institutions -
guarantees of John K Pavl and Francis|Secured
K Paul, directors of the Company.
Daimler Financial Services India Private Secured by hypothecation of vehicles|Vehicle loan - Secured |36 months 4.12 6.62
Limited purchased using the fund and personal 24 Months
guarantees of John K Paul and Francis
K Paul, dirgciors of the Company.
Kolak Mahindra Prime Limiled Secured by hypothecation of vehicles|Vehicle loan -Secured |36 months 220 15,49
purchased using the fund and personal 24 Months

guarantees of John K Paul and Francis

K Paul, direclors of the Company.




Popular Vehicles and Services Limited (formerly known as Popular Vehicles and Services Private Limited)
Motes to the financial statements (continued)

(All amounts in INR millions}

14 Borrowings {continued)

Lenders name Security terms Nature of Tenure As at 31 Marchl% | As at 31 Marchl8
bovrowings
Sundaram Finance Limited Securcd by hypothecation of vehicles|Vehicle loan -Secured |36 months 61.01 49.11
purchased using the fund and personal 24 Months
guarantees of John K Paul and Francis
K Paul, directors of the Company.
Sundaram Finance Limited Secured by personal guaraniees of John|Short term loan from |30 days 14.49 5.92
K Paul and Francis K Paul, directors of] financial institutions -
the Company. Unsecured
Indusind Bank Limited Secured by personal guaraniees of John|Short term loan from |30 days 12.87 6.31
K Paul and Francis K Paul, directors of|banks - Secured
the Company.
Magma Fin Corp Limiled Secured by personal guaraniees of John|Short term loan from |45 days 0.79 0.99
K PPaul and Francis K Paul, directors of] linancial institulions -
the Company. Unsecured
Mahindra and Mahindra Financial Services Secured by personal guaraniees of John|Short term loan from |45 days 9.62 32
Limited K Paul and Francis K Paul, directors of]financial instilutions -
the Company. Unsecured
Cholamandalam Investrnent and Finance Secured by personal guaraniees of John|Short term loan from (45 days 301 0.03
Company Limited K Paul and Francis K Paul, directors of] financial instilutions -
the Company. Unsecured
Iederal bank Limited Secured by equitable  mortgage  of] Term loan from banks {84 moaths 150.10 -
showroom building and movable fixed|Secured
assets of the company other than those
covered by term loan from SBI and
KMPL current assets of the company
and personal guarantees of John K
Paul, Francis K Paul and Naveen Philip,
directors of the Company.
Federal bank Limited Secured by advancesreceivables and|Short lerm loan from |60 days 101.18 32.25
stock of new vehicles of the company|banks - Secured
and personal guaranices of John K
Paul, Francis K Paul and Naveen Philip,
directors of the Company.
Federal bank Limited Secured by current assets other than|Short lerm loan from  [NA 80.85 -
assets secured by Inventory funding and|banks- Cash credit -
commercial property of John K Paul and|Secured
Francis K Paul, directors of the
Company
State Bank of [ndia Equitable  mortgage of  showroom|Short term loan from |45 Days 447 60 -
building belonging 1o directors  and|banks - Secured
personal guarantee of John K Paul and
Francis K Paul. directors of the|
Company.
HDFC Bank Limited Secured by hypothecation of stocks and|Short term loan from |30 Days 3.60
book debts under parippassu agreement. |banks - Secured
Dhanalaxmi Bank Limiled Secured by properly, plant and|Term loan from banks {60 months 63.75
equipment of the Company and|Secured
personal guarantees of John K Paul and
Franciz K Paul, directors of the
Company.
Dhanalaxmi Bank Limited Secured by property, plant  and|Short term loan from  |NA 5802
equipment of the Company and|banks- Cash credit -
personal guarantees of John K Paul and|Secured
Francis K Paul, directors of the
Company.
HDFC Bank Limnited Secured by hypothecalion of stocks and{Shorl tertn loan from |45 Days 209.73 -
book debls under parippassu agreement. [banks - Secured
*includes curvent maturities of long -lerm borrowings 1,755.67 1478.59
**Borrowings from hanks / financial institutions carey interest races from 8% to 16% per annum
B Changes in liabilities and financial assets arising from financing activities as at 31 March 2019
Particulars As at Cash flows Non cash changes As at
M March 2018 Fair value Others 31 March 2019'
changes
Mon current borrowings 271937 37.73 - - 317.50
Current borrowings* 1,269.75 1.168.42 243817
L4952 e 1,206,15 2,755.67

*inchudes current masrities of long -term borrowings and loan from directors.




Popular Vehicles and Services Limited (formerty known as Popular Vehicles and Services Private Limited)
Notes to the financial stat ts (continued)
{All amounts in INR millions}

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

15 Other financial liabilities

Current
Current matunities of long-term borrowings (refer note 14) 92.94 118.33
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 2.10 .87
Acerued salaries and benefits 196.07 174.43
Dues to creditors for expenses and others* 147.35 134,81
Dues to creditors for capital goods 4.69 5.01
Book overdrafl G.05 0.01
443.20 433.46
* Includes dues to related parties. For delails refer note 34,
The Company’s exposirce to currency and liquidity risk related to the above financial liabililies is disclosed in note 33,
16 Provisions
Non-current
Provision for emplovee benefits
Net defined benefit liability - Gratuity * 57.32 EL ]
Compensated absences 3241 26.88
89.73 66.67
Current
Provision for employee benefits
Compensated absences 25.88 22,52
25.88 22.52
115.61 89.19
* Also refer nole 32
17 Other liabilities
Non-current
Uneamed reveoune BY.11 80.26
89.11 80.26
Current
Advance from customers 155.86 253.04
Statutory dues payables 142.85 79.49
Uneamed revenue 25.81 15.30
124,52 347.83
413.63 428,09
18 Trade payables
Tolal outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 0.44 -
Total cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 385.61 134.15
386.05 134.15

All trade payables are 'current’.

The Company's exposure to currency and liguidity risks related 1o trade payables is disclosed in nate 33.

Disclosures as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ("the Act”} based on the Informatien available with the
Company are given below:

The principal amount remaining unpaid 10 any supplier as at the end of the year 0,40 -
The interest due on the principal remaining outstanding as at the end of the vear 0.04 -
The amount of interest paid under the Act, along with the amounts of the payment made beyond the appointed day during the - -
year

The amoumt of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which have been paid bul beyond the 0.04 -
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Act.

The amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year . 0.04 -

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues - -
as above are actually paid 10 the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under the Act

/ g’:}"KUTTUKAH@”
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Popular Yehicles and Services Limited (formerly lnown as Popular Vehicles and Services Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in INR millions)

19

21

2

24

15

Revenue from operations

Sale of products
Sales of new vehicles
Sale of spare parts and accessories
Sale of used vehicles

Sale of services (servicing of automobiles})
Other operating revenues
Income from schemes and incentives
Finance and insucance commission
Income from driving school

Reconciliation of revenue from sale of products and services
Gross revenue

Less: Discount allowed

Other income
Interest income based on effective interest rate
Fixed deposits with banks
Rent deposits
Loan to related parties (refer note 36)
Gain on sale of propenty, plant and equipment (net)
Liabilities no longer required written back
Financial assets at FVTPL - net change in fair value
Other non-operating income

Purchases of stock-in-trade
New vehicles

Used vehigles

Spares, lubricants and accessories

Change in inventories of stock-in-trade
Opening iventory
Closing inventory

Employee benefits expense

Salaries and allowances

Contributicon to provident and other fund (refer note 32)
Staff welfare expense

Finance costs
Interest on bank borrowings
Other botrowing costs

Depreciation and amertisation expense
Depreciation on propenty, plant and equipment
Amortisation on intangible assets

Year ended
M March 2019

Year ended
M March 2018

16,627.62 17,670,110
1,772.19 1,412.87
1,794.56 1,436.43
[,199.54 338,76

635.82 695.51
468.85 530.41
26.57 23.60
22,525.15 22,608.69
22,318.76 22,076.78
924.85 71761
21,393.91 21,359.17
7.20 6.08

3.24 318
69.46 5.47

- 6.14
33.03 28.96
0.21 0.02
15.66 11.10
128.80 60.95

17,013.63 17,203.77
1,752.42 1,336.01
1,494.85 1,244.55

20,260.90 19,784.33

790.57 680.85
[,778.35 790.57
(987.78) (109.72)
[,367.27 1,160.15
103.51 100.65
113.95 86.46
1,584.73 1,347.26
204.19 130.39
6.00 292
210.1% 133.31
152.19 15075
6.26 597
158.45 156,72

o

< i‘ i'?’,l’:

Rean
Wigt



Popular Vehicles and Services Limited (formerly known as Popular Vehicles and Services Private Limited}
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in INR millions)
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2013

26 Other expenses

Rent (refer note 34) 314.55 257.07
Advertising and sales promotion 179.31 174.59
Consumables 130.72 125.24
Repairs and maintenance:
Plant and machinery 3 7.16
Building 22.31 20.46
Others 64.99 56.83
Pawer, water and fuel 75.00 70.98
Travelling and conveyance 68.98 61.95
Housekeeping and security 47.09 43.84
Office expenses 43,57 43.01
Communication 40.37 33.94
Refurbishment charges on used vehicles 28.46 27.31
Allowance for expected credit loss 910 12.60
Loss on sale of propenty, plant and equipment {net) 4.60 -
Pre-delivery inspection charges 27.33 27.16
Rates and taxes 25.19 21.39
Transportation charges 19.13 20.28
Bank charges 23,94 17.62
[nsurance 16.27 17.93
Management fee on used vehicles 12,95 11.04
Legal and professional {refer note 30) 37.06 5.58
Commission 1.41 173
Donation and charity 10.27 0.34
Expenditure on corporate social responsibility ('CSR') (refer note (i) below) 7.14 0.32
Miscellaneous expenses 24.42 19.43
1,237.88 1,077.80

(i) CSR expenditure
- Gross amount required to be spent during the year 420 336
Amount spent during the year on ;
Construction/ acguisition of asset - :
On purposes other than above 7.14 0.32
7.14 0.32
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Popular Vebicles and Services Limited (formerly imown as Popular Vehicles and Services Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
{All amounts in [NR millions)

28  Contingent liabilities and commitments

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Contingent liabilities

Claims agarnst the Company not acinowledged as debis

Service tax related matters (see note (a) below) 318 6.44

KVAT related matters (see note (a) below) 28335 203.93

Income rax (see note {a) below) 24.32 3343

Employees' state insurancefprovident fimd demand (see note (a) below) 7.95 7.95

Customer claims (see note (b) below) 44.81 34.29

Commitments

Corporate guaraniees 757.84 T47.56

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) and

not provided for 175.08 94.64

Details of claims against the Company as at 31 March 2019:

a) Pending resolution of the respective proceedings, it is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timing of cash flows, if any, in respect of the above
as it is determinable only on receipt of judgement/ decision pending with various forums/ authorities. The Company has received all its pending litigations
and proceedings and has adequately provided for when provision is required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in the financial
information. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on its financial position,

b) There are certain claims raised by various customers, pending before various consumer forums. The management does not expect the outcomne of the
action to have a material effzct on its financial position,

¢) On 28th February 2¢19,the Hon'ble Supreme Court of [ndia delivered a judgment clarifying the principles that need to be applied in determining the
components of salaries and wages an which Provident Fund{PF) contributions need to be made by establishments. Basis this judgment ,the Company has re-
computed its liability towards PF for the month March 2019. In respect of the earlier periods/years, the company has been legally advised that there are
numerous interpretative challenges on the application of the judgment retrospectively. Based on such legal advice,the management believes that it is
impracticable at this stape o reliably measure the provision required, if any and accordingly, no provision has been made for the same. Necessary
adjustment if any will be made to the books as more clarity emerged on this subject,

29  Earnings per share
A. Basic earnings per share
The calculation of profit attributable to equity share holders and weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the purpose of basic eamings per
share calculations are as follows:
i) Net profit attributable to equity share holders
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Net profit for the year, attributable to the equity share holders (A) 122.76 176.12
ii) Weighted average number of equity shares (basic and diluted)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year {Refer note 13) 333 3.33
Weighted average number of shares issued during the year (right issue) 032 -
Weighted average number of shares issued during the year (bonus issue} 8.62 8.62
Weighted average number of equity shares of INR 10 each outstanding during the year (C) 12.27 11.95
Earnings per share, basic angd diluted (A/C) 10.00 14.74
The number of equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for issue of bonus shares during the year ended 31 March 2019,
B. Diluted earnings per share
There are no potential dilutive equity shares as ai 31 March 2019,
30  Auditors’ remuneration (Iincluded under legal, professional and other consultancy charges, net of goods and service tax}
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Statutory audit 1.30 130
Certification and other services 0.13 0.70
1.43 2.00
31 Segment veporting

The Company has a single reportable business segment which is reviewed by Chief operating decision maker (‘CODM". The Company is engaged in the
business of purchase and sale of vehicles and related services. The entire operations are organised and managed as one organisational unit with the same set
of risks and returns, hence the same has been considered as representing a single primary segment. The Company renders its services in {ndia only and does
not have any operations in econcric environments with different risks and retumns; hence it is considered cperating in a single geographic segment. The
Company has no significant customer whose carmying value exceeds 10% of the revenue from operations; hence no separate disclosure is made on the same.

Accordingly, no segment disclosure has been made in these financial stalements,
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Popular ¥Yehicles and Services Limited (formeriy kmown as Popular Vehicles and Services Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(All amounts in INR millions)

32 Employee benefits

A Defined contribution plan

The Coropany makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employes salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards provident fund
and other funds which are defined contribution plans. The Company has no obligations other than to make the specified contributions. The contributions are

charged to the statement of profit and loss as they accrue.
B Defined benefit plan

The Company operates certain post-employment defined benefit plan which is provided for based on actuarial valuation cammied out by an independent
actuary using the projected unit credit method. The Company accrues pratuily as per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (*Gratuity Act’).
The Gratuity Plan entitles an employee, who has rendered atleast five years of continuous service, to receive one-half month’s salary for each year of
completed service (service of six months or above is rounded off to one year) at the time of retirement/ exit, restricted 1o a sum of INR 2.00 million.

Based on an actuarial valuation obtained in this respecl, the following table sets out the status of the benefit plan and the amounts recognised in the

Company’s standalone financial statements as at balance sheet date:
Reconcifiation of the projected defined benefit obligation

Particulars As at As at
3t March 2019 31 March 2018

Defined benefit ability 167.37 136.05

Plan assets 110.05 96.26

Net defined benefit liability/ {(asset) £7.32 39.79

Liability for compensated absences 58.29 49.40

Total employee benefit liability 115.61 §0.19

Non-current defined benefit liability 89.73 66.67

Current defined benefit hability 2588 22.52

C  Reconciliation of net defined benefit (assets)/ liability
i) Reconcifiation of present values of defined benefii obligation
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benfit {assety liability and its components:
Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year 136.05 111.60

Current service cost 22.76 19.14

Past service Cost - 0.73

Interest cost 10.34 7.81

Benefits paid (6.68) (9.82)

Re-measurements

Actuarial gain/{loss) recognised in other comprehensive incorme

- changes in demographic assumptions 0.05

Actuarial gainf{loss) recognised in other comprehensive income

- changes in financial assumptions 323 5.02

- changes in experience over the past period 1.62 1.57

Defined benefit oblipation as ar the end of the year 167.37 136.05

ii) Reconciliation of present value of plan asseis

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2009 31 March 2018

Plan assets at the beginning of the year 56.20 98.91

Contributions paid mto the plan 13.29 0.54

Benefits paid {6.69} (9.82)

Interest income 7.55 6.58

Re-measurements

Return on plan assets excluding amount included in net interest on the net defined liability/{asser) {0.36) 0.05

- return on plan asset =

Balance at the end of the year 110,05 96.26

Net defined benefit liability 57.32 39.79

D Expenses recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss

{i) Expenses recognised in the standalone statement ol profit and loss

Particulars Year ended Year ended|
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Current service cost 22.76 19.14

Past service cost - 0.73

Net interest on net defined liability 2.79 1.23

Net gratuity cost 25.55 21.10




Popular Vehicles and Services Limited {formerfy lmown as Popular Vehicles and Services Private Lintited)
Notes to the financial statemenis {(continued)
{All amounts in [INR millions)

32 Employee benefits {continned)

(i) R ts recognised in other comprehensive income

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Acturial (gain)/ loss on defined benefit obligation 4.90 6.59

Loss/ (return) on plan asset excluding interest income 0.36 (0.05)

Net gratuity cost 5.26 6.54

E  Plan Asset

Plan asset comprises of the following:

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Funds managed by Life [nsurance Corporation of [ndia 113.05 96.26 J

The Company makes annual contribution to the Life [nsurance Corporation of India { 'LIC") of an amount advised by LIC, The Company was not informed by

LIC of the investients made by them ar the break up of the plan assets into various type of investments.
F  Defined Benefit Obligation
(i} Actuarial Assumptions
The following are the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted average):

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Discount rate 7.40% 7.60%
Salary growth rate 9.00% 9.00%
Altrition rate Up to 35 years: 25%  Up to 35 years: 25%
p.a p.a

35 yrs & above: 3% 35 yrs & above: 3%

p.a. p.a.

Weighted average duration of defined benefit 9 years 2 years

The weighted average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost as set out below;

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set in accordance with the standard table - IALM 20012-14 (Ultimate). The Company assesses these
assumptions with its projected long-teem plans of growth and prevalent industry standards. The discount rate is based on the government securities yield.

Gratuity is applicable only to employees drawing a salary in Indian rupees and there are no other foreign defined benefit gratuity plans.

{ii) Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to ong of the actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined

henefit cbligation by the amounts shown below:

Particulars As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement} (15.42) 18.08 {12.39} 14.55
Future salary growth (1% movement) 17.62 {15.34) 14.20 (12.34)
Alttrition cate (1% movement) (2.31) 2.57 (1.74) 1.92

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of the cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the

sensitivity of the assumption shown.
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Popular Vehicles and Services Limited (foemerly known as Popular Vehicles and Services Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in [NR millions)

33 Financial Instruments- Fair values and risk management (continued}

1)
if)

Financial risk management

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit cisk, liquidity risk and market risk.

Risk management framework

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to financial loss. The credit risk
arises principally from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables} and from its investing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions
and other financial instruments.

Credit msk is controlled by analysing credit limits and ceeditworthiness of customers on a continuous basis to whom credit has been granted aiter obtaining
necessary approvals for credit. The collection from the trade receivables are monitored on a continuous basis by the receivables team.

The Company establishes an allowance for credit loss that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of trade and other receivables based on the past and
the recent collection trend, The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables amounting to INR 1,211.30 million
(31 March 2018: INR 933.57 million).

The Company has no significant customer whose carrying value exceeds 10% of the revenue from operations, There i3 no sipnificant concentration of credit risk.
The movement in allowance for credit loss in respect of trade and other receivables during the year was as follows:

Allowance for credit loss As at As al
M March 2019 31 March 2018
Balance at the beginning of the year 2643 44.76
Provision created during the year 9.10 12.60
[mpairment loss recoghised! (reversed) {13.73) {30.93)
Balance at the end ol the year 21,80 26.43

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances is limited as the Company generally transacts with banks and financial institutions with high
cradit ratings assigned by domestic credit rating agencies.

iii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity rigk is the rigk that the company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet
i3 liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation.

The Company believes that the working capital is sufficient to meet its current requirements. Accordingly, no liquidity risk is perceived. The table below provides
details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial Habilities as of 31 March 2019:

Particulars Payable within 1 year Morethan 1 year Total
Trade payables 386.05 - 386.05

Borrowings # 2,438.17 224.56 2,662,773

Other financial liabilities 350.26 - 350.26

The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of 31 March 2018:

Particulars Payable within } year Move than 1 year Total
Trade payables 134.15 - 134.15

Borrowings # 1,269.75 161.44 1,431.19

Other financial liabilities 31513 - 315.13

# Represents borrowings (current and nen-current) and current maturities of long term borrowings included in other current financial {iabilities.

iv) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows ofa financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange
rates, interest rates and equity prices,

Foreign currency risk

The Coropany is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the currencies in which transactions are denominated and the functional
currency of the Company. The functional currency of the Group is [NR and the Group does not have any material foreign currency transactions during the years
ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 .

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Company's main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. The interest
rate on the Company’s financial instruments is based on market rates. The Company monitors the movement in interest rates on an ongoing basis,

{(a) Interest rate risk exposure

The exposure of the Group's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the year are as follows:

Financial liabilities (bank borrowings) As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Variable rate botrowings including current maturities 2,531.11 1.461.16
Sensitivity
Particulars Impact on profit or (Joss) Impact on other components of equity
{net of tax)
As at As at As at Asal
31 March 2019 M March 2018 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
1% increase in variable rate (2531 (14.61) {16.47)
1% decrease i variable rate 25.3) 14.61 16.47
The interest rate sensitivity is based on the closing balance of variable interest rate borrowings from banks and financial institutions.
/
o
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Popular Vehicles and Services Limited (formerly known as Popular Vehicles and Services Privale Limited)
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
{All amounts in INR millions)
33 Financial Instruments- Fair values and risk management (continued)
Financial risk management (continued)
C  Measurement of air values

The fair value of the financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis. The discount rates used is based an management estimales.

Level 1 fair values

[nvestment in equity shares that has a quoted price and which are actively traded on the stock exchanges. [t is been valued using the closing price as at the

teporting peried on the stock exchanges.
Level 3 fair values
[f one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable data, the ingtrument is included in level 3.

The quantitative sensitivity analysis of level 3 fair value of financial instrument as at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 has not been disclosed as it is not

material to the Company.
34 Operating leases

The Company is obligated under cancellable operating leases for its certain office premises which are renewable at the option of both the lessor and Jessee.
The Company is obligated under non-cancellable operating leases for its office premises. Future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable operating

leases are as follows:

() Future minimum lease payments
The future minimum lease payments to be made under non-cancellable operating lease are as follows:

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Payable iv less than one year 104,93 130.22

Payable between one to five years 291.30 18339

Payable after more than five years 674.52 738.35
(i) Amounes recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars As at Year ended|

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Non cancellable 130.22 125.43

Cancellable 184,33 131.64

{b) Operating lease as a lessor

The Company has leased out building under operating lease. There is no escalation or renewal clause in the lease agreements and sub-letting is not permitted. The
lease is cancellable and the total lease income recognised during the year was INR 0.97 million (previous year: INR 0.97 million).

35 Capital Management

The Company's policy is to maintain a stable capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the
business. Management monitors capital on the basis of return on capital employed as well as the debt to total equity ratio. For the purpose of debt to total equity
ratio, debt considered is long-term and short-term borrowings. Total equity comprise of issued share capital and other equity.

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Total equity atiributable to the equity shareholders of the Company 1,822.99 1,697.79
As a percentage of total capital 4% 52%
Long-term borrowings including current maturities 317.50 279.77
Short-term borrowings 243517 1,269.75
Total borrowings 2,755.67 1,549.52
As a percentage of total capital 60% 48%
Total capital (equity and borrowings) 4,578.66 3.247.31
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Popular Vehicles and Services Limited (formerly lmown as Popular Vehicles and Services Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
{All amounts in INR millions)

36 Related parties
{. Names of related parties and description of relationship:
(a) Entity having significant influence over the Company

(b) Subsidiaries and step down subsidiaries

BanyanTree Growth Capital 11, LLC, Mauritius

Poputar Mega Motors (lndia) Private Limited, India

Popular Autoworks Private Limited, India

Vision Motors Private Limited, India

Kuttukaran Cars Private Limited (formerly known as Prabal Motors Private Limited)
Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited, India

Kntiukaran Pre Owned Cars Private Lirmted, India

Avita [nsurance Broking LEP,lndia

(<) Other related parties with whom the Company had transactions during the year

- Key management personnel and their relatives (KMP)

- Entities m which KMP has significant influence

il Related party transactions:

Mrc. Francis K Paul, Whole Time Director

M. John K Paul, Managing Director

Mr. Naveen Philip, Director

Mrs. Mariam Francis (daughter of Mr. Francis K Paul)

Mr . John Verghese ,Chief Financial Officer

Mr . Philip Chacko Mundanilkunnathil , Chief Executive Officer

Mr . Varun Thazhathu Veedu , Company Secretary

Prabal Motors Private Limited,India (formerly known as Popular Kuttukaran Cars Private Limited)
Kuttukaran Institute for Human Resource Development, India

Keracon Equipment Private Limited, India

(a} The Company has entered into the following transactions with related parties during the year ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018:

Particulars

Revenue from operations

Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited
Popular Mepa Motors (India) Private Limited
Prabal Motors Private Limited

Viston Motors Private Limited

Lease Rental

Francis K Paul

John K Paul

Vision Motors Private Limited

Guarantee commission received

Popular Autodealers Private Limited

Popular Autoworks Private Limited

Popular Mega Motors (India) Private Limited
Prabal Motors Private Limited

Vision Motors Private Limited

(ncome from rent

Popular Aute Dealers Private Limited
Popular Mega Motors (India) Private Limited
[ntercorporate loan repaid by subsidiaries
Popular Autoworks Private Limited

Popular Ante Dealers Private Limited
Popular Mega Motors (India) Private Lirmited
Intercorporate loan given

Popular Autoworks Private Limited

Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited
Popular Mega Motors (India} Private Litnited
Interest on loan to related parties

Popular Autoworks Private Limited

Popular Mega Motors (India} Private Limited
Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited
Purchase of assets

Popular Mega Motors {India) Private Limited
Vision Motors Private Limited

Investment

Popular Autoworks Private Limited

Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited
Popular Mega Motors (India} Private Limited
Purchase of vehicles/accessories and spares
Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited
Popular Mega Motors {India} Private Limited
Vision Motors Private Limmited

Year ended Year ended|
31 March 2019 M March 2018
1.24 1.02
0.20
- 0.61
0.05
2.14 1.94
0.71 0.71
0.17
0.29 0.29
0.75 0.74
2,22 1.70
0.85 (.55
1.54 1.58
0.43 043
0.54 0,54
195.00
30.00 -
§5.00 -
216.00 90.00
38.50 -
112.49 -
36.69 547
24.39 -
8.38
- 1.10
- 1.44
218.16
38.92 -
113.59
126,51 75.61
0.01 1.65
32.07 16.99




Popular Vehicles and Services Limited (formerly known as Popular Vehicles and Services Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in [NR millions)
36 Related partles {(continued)
I Related party transactions (continued)

Particulars

Hod

Year
3 March 2019

Year ended
31 March 2018

Expense met by the Company

Kuttukaran Institute for Homan Resource Development - 0.0l
Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited §.22 0.97
Popular Mega Motors (India) Private Limited 0.06 0.06
Popular Autoworks Private Limited =
Prabal Motors Private Limited, India - 0,01
Vision Motors Private Limited 0.035 0.02
Expense met on behalf of the Company
Kutukaran Institute for Human Resoutce Development 0.0l 0.07
Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited - 0.58
Popuiar Autoworks Private Limited 6.69 559
Popular Mega Motors (India) Private Limited 1.30 4.04
Kuttukaran Cars Private Limited 0.11 0.01
Prabal Motors Private Limited 0.19 0.42
Vision Motors Private Limited .40 1.34
Kuttukaran Pre Owned Cars Private Limited 0.02
Repairs and maintenance
Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited 0.20 0.04
Popular Autoworks Private Limited - 0.76
Popular Mega Motors (India) Private Limited 029 0.15
Sale of assets
Vision Motors Private Limited - 578
Popular Autoworks Private Limited .83 -
Prabal Motors Private Ltd 0.64 -
Remuneration (Key Management Personnel)*
Francis K Paul 6.60 6.60
John K Paul 6.60 6.60
M.A. Sajjan - 0.30
Mariam K Francis 0.60 0.60
John Verghese 541 4.25
Philip Chacko Mundanilkunnathil 10.54 0.48
Warun Thazhathy Veedu* 1.70
Commission and incentive
Francis K Paul 9.00 18.25
John K Paul 9.00 18.25
Repayment of loan from Directors
Francis K Paul (35.14) -
Johm K Paul (35.79)
* Joined w.e.t 21 May 2018.

36 Related parties (continued)
11 Balance receivable from/ (payvable) to refated parties as at the balance sheet date:
Particulars As at As at

M March 2019

3 March 2018

Guarantee commission receivable

Popular Autodealers Private Limited

Poputar Autoworks Private Limited

Popular Mega Motors (India) Private Limited
Prabal Motors Private Limited

Vision Motors Private Limired

Loan from Directors

Francis K Paul

John K Paul

Loans to related parties

Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited
Popular Autoworks Private Limited

Popular Mega Motors (India) Private Limited
Trade receivables

Kuttukaran Cars Private Limited

Kattukaran Institute for Human Resource Development
Kultukaran Pre Owned Cars Private Limited
Pepular Auto Dealers Private Limited
Popular Autoworks Private Limited

Popular Mepa Motors (India) Private Limited
Prabal Motors Private Limited

Vision Motors Private Limited

o.n
0.27
0.02
1.46
018
3.59
2.09
0.65

0.41
2.57
6.43
382
3.20

(35.14)
(35.79)

30.00
195.00
85.00

031

0.22
0.01
2.64
1.60
1.59




Popular Vehicles and Services Limited (formerly known as Popular Vehicles and Services Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
{All amounts in [NR. millions)
36 Reclated parties {continued)

I, Balance recejvable from/ (payable) to related parties as at the balance sheet date:

Particulars

Asat
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

Commission and incentive payable
Francis K Paul
John K Paul

Popular Auto Dealers Privare Limited
Popular Autoworks Private Limited

Prabal Motors Private Limited

Vision Motors Private Limited
Corporate guarantees

Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited
Popular Autoworks Private Limited

Prabal Motors Private Limited
Vision Motors Private Limited

Dues to creditors for expenses and others

Popular Mega Motors (India) Private Limited

Popular Mega Motors (India) Private Limited

(1.50)
(1.50)

(461
{0.60)
(0.13)

(t.21)

3810
100.50
296,40
112,84
210.00

(18.25)
(18.25)

(6.67)
(0.66)
(1.75)
(0.02)
(5.02)

3851
15241
226.99
119.25
210.00

17 Asset held for sale

The Board of directors has obtained the approval to sell the below listed tand and building belonging to the company, mitially on Extraordinary General meeting
dated & February 2019 and subsequently on Extraordinary General meeting dated 3 June 2019. Asset held for sale as on 31 March 2019 has been stated at carrying

value (being lower of their fair value less cost to sell),

. As at As al
Particulars of land and bhuilding 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Service Centre, Edapally, Emakulam 09.47
Service Centre, Killipalam, Thiryvananthapuram 16.95 -
Showroom, Thiruvananthapuram 6.04 -

The sale is expected to be completed within a period of one year

38 The previous figures have been reclassified/ regrouped whereever necessary.

As per our report of even date attached
Jor BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountanis

Firm jegistration number: 11623 1W/ W-100024
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